
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: City Administrator Ron Johnson 
 
SUBJECT:    Mediacom Franchise Renewal 
 
DATE: March 3, 2017 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
At its February 21, 2017 regular meeting, City Council approved an ordinance granting 
a franchise to Hiawatha Broadband Communications, Inc. to construct, operate, and 
maintain a cable communications in the city. 
 
Mediacom’s franchise was extended to the end of 2015 and not extended further.  
Mediacom, of course, continues operating presumably on the legal theory that franchise 
rights remain until either the company’s renewal request is denied or a new franchise is 
issued.   
 
Attached is a memo from Bob Vose, Kennedy Graven Chartered, the city’s consulting 
attorney, providing a brief background and stating Mediacom’s position with the 
franchise agreement.  Mr. Vose will be present to provide more information, including 
options for Council regarding the Mediacom cable franchise renewal, and accept 
questions from City Council. 
 
Note:  Mr. Vose forwarded his memo to Mediacom and they responded with the 
attached letter.   
 
A Cable Commission meeting has been set for Monday at 5:30 p.m. 
 

 
REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION 
Consider options regarding the Mediacom cable franchise renewal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment(s):   Bob Vose memo; response letter from Mediacom 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:  February 24, 2017 

To:  City of Cannon Falls, City Council 

From:  Bob Vose 

Re:  Mediacom Franchise Renewal 

 

 

Now that the City has issued a competitive franchise to Hiawatha Broadband Corporation 

(HBC), I am seeking direction concerning Mediacom’s renewal.  As the Council knows, 

Mediacom’s franchise was extended to the end of 2015 and not extended further.  Mediacom, of 

course, continues operating presumably on the legal theory that franchise rights remain until 

either the company’s renewal request is denied or a new franchise is issued.   

 

Mediacom indicates that it will accept a franchise that is materially equivalent to HBC’s except 

as follows:  

 

1. PEG Fee – Mediacom will agree to pay a $30,000 “grant” for new PEG 

equipment/capital equivalent to HBC’s obligation.  Mediacom has also agreed to 

continue the $1.25 per customer, per mos. PEG Fee, but demands to retain $1.00 until the 

“grant” is recouped.  HBC does not have this right.  Moreover, Mediacom’s prior 

franchise required a $25,000 grant and $1.25 PEG Fee with no right to recoup.   

 

Mediacom’s attorney explains: “If Mediacom fails to recoup the Grant, customers in 

other Mediacom cities will effectively subsidize the City’s demands; and if Mediacom 

increases rates to recoup the Grant, many customers will likely find alternate video 

providers which do not impose such costs such as DirecTV, Dish, Netflix, Amazon, 

Hulu, etc. That hurts both the City and Mediacom and is, therefore, unacceptable.”  

 

2. HD PEG – Unlike HBC, Mediacom will not agree to provide one or more PEG channels 

in high definition (HD) due to the cost.  Mediacom did upgrade its system to all-digital 

which should have improved signal quality, including for the PEG channels.  Mediacom 

offers to revisit this issue in the fifth year of a 10 year franchise as follows:   

 

6.1.e. HD PEG. Grantee shall provide the PEG access channels on the Basic 

Cable Service tier.  At any time beginning five (5) years after the Effective Date 

of this Franchise, Grantee shall, within sixty (60) days of written request by the 

City, meet with the City to determine whether to convert one (1) standard 

http://www.kennedy-graven.com/
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definition (SD) provide a PEG access channel to in high definition (HD) on an 

HD tier then-available on mutually acceptable terms and conditions.  The City 

shall be responsible for all equipment and associated costs of providing HD 

programming beyond the demarcation point, defined as the specific location 

inside the building-served where the Grantee’s facilities connect to internal 

wiring, and the Grantee shall be responsible for all System equipment and costs 

associated with providing the HD channel(s) on its side of the demarcation point.   

 

3. 2-Way Connections – Mediacom proposes to provide return connections from the sites it 

currently serves which the company believes are: Cannon Falls High School, City Hall and 

the High School football field, but not John Burch Park.  City staff believes Mediacom has return 

capacity from John Burch Park but not the High School football field. 
 
If Mediacom’s position is unacceptable to the City Council, the only way to resolve this renewal 
(with a denial or renewed franchise) is the “formal process.”  To summarize greatly, this process 
would involve Mediacom’s submission of a final proposal, the City’s likely preliminary 
rejection of that proposal, and an administrative hearing process to determine whether or not the 
proposal is reasonable to meet the City’s identified needs/interests in light of the costs. 
 






